



Roll Call Number

Agenda Item Number

60

Date December 18, 2023

An Ordinance entitled, "AN ORDINANCE to amend the Municipal Code of the City of Des Moines, Iowa, 2000, adopted by Ordinance No. 13,827, passed June 5, 2000, as heretofore amended, by amending Chapter 74, Sections 74-92, 74-93, 74-94, 74-97, 74-100, 74-107, 74-110, 74-112, 74-175, 74-177, 74-180, 74-181, 74-182, 74-183, 74-184, relating to parks and recreation",

(Council Communication No. 23-558)

presented.

Moved by _____ that this ordinance be considered and given first vote for passage. Second by _____.

FORM APPROVED:

(First of three required readings)

/s/ Glenna K. Frank
Glenna K. Frank
Assistant City Attorney

COUNCIL ACTION	YEAS	NAYS	PASS	ABSENT
COWNIE				
BOESEN				
COLEMAN				
GATTO				
MANDELBAUM				
VOSS				
WESTERGAARD				
TOTAL				
MOTION CARRIED			APPROVED	

CERTIFICATE

I, LAURA BAUMGARTNER, City Clerk of said City hereby certify that at a meeting of the City Council of said City of Des Moines, held on the above date, among other proceedings the above was adopted.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my seal the day and year first above written.

Mayor

City Clerk

ORDINANCE NO. _____

AN ORDINANCE to amend the Municipal Code of the City of Des Moines, Iowa, 2000, adopted by Ordinance No. 13,827, passed June 5, 2000, as heretofore amended, by amending Chapter 74, Sections 74-92, 74-93, 74-94, 74-97, 74-100, 74-107, 74-110, 74-112, 74-175, 74-177, 74-180, 74-181, 74-182, 74-183, 74-184, relating to parks and recreation.

Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Des Moines, Iowa:

Section 1. That the Municipal Code of the City of Des Moines, Iowa, 2000, adopted by Ordinance No. 13,827, passed June 5, 2000, as heretofore amended, is hereby amended, by amending Chapter 74, Sections 74-92, 74-93, 74-94, 74-97, 74-100, 74-107, 74-110, 74-112, 74-175, 74-177, 74-180, 74-181, 74-182, 74-183, 74-184, relating to parks and recreation, as follows:

Sec. 74-92. Consumption of alcohol; intoxication.

- (a) It is unlawful for any person to use, possess or consume beer, wine or alcoholic liquor on or in any city parks, trails, land and facilities managed by the parks and recreation department including all park roads and parking areas in parks, except in accordance with all federal, state and local laws and by issuance of a permit or pursuant to a concession agreement and either:
- (1) Approval of the parks and recreation board; or
 - (2) Such use, possession or consumption is within an enclosed park shelter; or
 - (3) Such use, possession or consumption is within the Clare and Miles Mills Rose Garden, Sylvan Theater, Lilac Arboretum, Simon Estes Amphitheater or the Gray's Lake Park Christine Hensley Terrace and Terrace building and designated outdoor areas; or
 - (4) Such use, possession or consumption is within specified areas of the Principal Riverwalk including Long Look Garden, Brenton Skating Plaza and plaza adjacent to World Food Prize building; or
 - (5) Such use, possession or consumption is allowed within the fields and stands at Carney Softball Park, James W. Cownie Soccer Park and Baseball Park, Savage Softball Fields at Easttown Park, and George Davis Softball Park when said park facilities are in use for adult events and except when other fields at said park facilities are in use for youth events; or
 - (6) Such use, possession or consumption is within the park between Tenth and Fifteenth Streets and Grand Avenue and Locust Street a/k/a "Western Gateway Park"; or
 - (7) Within Riverview Park or in conjunction with the Prairie Meadows Riviera Amphitheater at Riverview Park.
- (b) The permit must be obtained from the parks and recreation director or his or her designee.
- (c) Use, possession or consumption of beer or wine is allowed pursuant to a concession agreement covering:

- (1) Birdland Marina service building and designated outdoor areas.
- (d) In addition to the above requirements, a state liquor control license and approval of the parks and recreation board is required in order to use, possess or consume keg beer or alcoholic liquor, except that parks and recreation board approval is not required for use, possession or consumption within “Western Gateway Park,” Birdland Marina and Christine Hensley Terrace and Terrace building and designated outdoor areas.
- (e) No person shall be intoxicated or simulate intoxication in a city park.

Sec. 74-93. Destruction of plant or animal life.

- (a) No person, except persons authorized, shall in any manner deface, disturb, injure or remove any tree, shrub, turf, ~~or~~ plant, or fungi standing or growing in any city park or recreation facility or pick or destroy any flowers or seeds growing therein. No person, except persons authorized, shall feed, remove or attempt to remove, disturb, injure, or kill any bird, waterfowl or other animal in any city park or recreation facility.
- (b) No person shall cut or remove any wood, flowers, seeds, fungi, vegetables, nuts, turf, grass, soil, rock, sand or gravel from any city park without a written permit from the parks and recreation director, including for the purpose of metal detecting any underground object.

Sec. 74-94. Fires.

No person shall kindle, build, maintain, or in any way light a fire in any city park, except in a permanent fireplaces provided or in self-supporting barbecue grills or stoves provided by the city in places designated as picnic areas, or by permit from the parks and recreation director after a determination that such fire creates no hazards to the park or to persons in the immediate vicinity. ~~No fire shall be built within ten feet of any tree or building or beneath the branches of any tree or in any underbrush, unless such fire is enclosed within a stove, oven, or fireplace provided on the premises by the city for use in picnic cooking.~~ Any fire in a permanent barbecue grill provided by the city or permitted for use by the parks and recreation director shall be enclosed within the fireplace or barbecue grill and continuously under the care and control of a competent person, from the time it is kindled until it is extinguished. Said fire shall not impact or cause damage to any person, park improvement, plant or animal life.

.....

Sec. 74-97. Lakes and ponds.

No person shall throw or place any foreign or waste substance in any lake, pond or swimming beach in any public park. Boats and other personal watercraft are not permitted in lakes and ponds, with the exception of Gray's Lake, without the permission of the parks and recreation director. No person shall fish from or dangle any object from the Gray's Lake watercraft rental dock, the Gray's Lake swimming beach, ~~or~~ the Gray's Lake pedestrian bridges or any pedestrian bridges in any city park.

.....

Sec. 74-100. Park facility hours.

The hours of operation for all public parks, community recreation centers, aquatic centers, pools, wading pools, splash pools, spraygrounds, and city recreational facilities, except for the Greater Des Moines Botanical Garden, A. H. Blank Park Zoo, Principal Park, and Prairie Meadows Riviera Amphitheater at Riverview Park, shall be established by the Des Moines parks and recreation board by vote at one board meeting. The parks and recreation director shall thereafter have authority to adjust such hours, for a period of one season, unless otherwise directed by the Des Moines parks and recreation board. The hours of the Brenton Skating Plaza and support pavilion shall be established by the parks and recreation director. For the purposes of this section, "one season" shall mean the first weekend in April through the last weekend in October and the Monday following the last weekend of October up to the first weekend in April.

- (a) No person shall remain in any public park, community recreation center or recreational facility during the periods of time set by this section unless special permission shall have been given by the parks and recreation director for such persons or group of persons to remain there. Such permit shall not allow use of the park for more than two (2) hours prior to its opening time or more than two (2) hours after its closing time, unless issued in compliance with section 74-101.
- (b) No person shall remain in or on any city park, inclusive of municipal golf courses, from 10:00 p.m. until 6:00 a.m.
- (c) Exceptions are made for:
 - (1) *Clubhouses and related facilities on golf courses.* These facilities may remain open until 2:00 a.m.
 - (2) *Concerts at the Simon Estes Riverfront Amphitheater.* This facility may remain open until 12:00 a.m. (midnight).
 - (3) *Prairie Meadows Riviera Amphitheater at Riverview Park.* This facility may remain open until 12:00 a.m. (midnight).
 - (4) *Birdland Marina.* This facility may remain open until 11:00 p.m.
 - (5) *Brenton Skating Plaza.* This facility may remain open until 12:00 a.m. (midnight).
 - (6) *Western Gateway Park and John and Mary Pappajohn Sculpture Park.* This facility may remain open until 12:00 a.m. (midnight).
 - (7) *Gray's Lake Park.* This facility may remain open from 6:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. from November 1-March 31 and from 5:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. from April 1-October 31.
 - (8) *Principal Riverwalk* (excluding trails and trail heads which follow multi-use recreational trails hours, [the Hub Spot](#) and Rotary Riverwalk Park which follows standard park hours): These facilities may remain open until 2:00 a.m.
 - (9) *Multi-use recreational trails.* These facilities shall be open at all times.
 - (10) *James W. Cownie Soccer Park, James W. Cownie Baseball Park, George Davis Softball Park, Savage Softball Fields at Easttown Park and Carney Softball Park.* These facilities may be open until 12:00 a.m. (midnight).

.....

Sec. 74-107. Beaches.

- (a) Swimming and wading in bodies of water in the parks is permitted only within the marked area adjacent to designated swimming beaches, except by written permission of the parks and recreation director.
- (b) Swimming and wading adjacent to authorized swimming beaches shall be permitted only inside the buoys and only during the swimming season as established by the parks and recreation board. The director may extend or shorten the swimming season or may eliminate or close areas adjacent to such beaches as authorized swimming areas with due regard for weather conditions and public safety.
- (c) No person shall change clothes in a park except in a restroom or other authorized place designated for such activity.
- (d) No person shall swim, dive or enter the water within marked areas adjacent to any swimming beach while wearing or carrying an air or gas tank for the purpose of underwater breathing, in the activity commonly known as skindiving or scuba diving, without special permission from the parks and recreation director.
- (e) No person shall disregard notices, prohibitions or directions on any beach sign or disobey the lawful order of any public officer or parks and recreation department staff.
- (f) No person shall act at any swimming beach or in the water in such a manner as to jeopardize the safety and health of that person or others.
- (g) Nothing contained in this section shall be construed to prohibit swimming or wading (i) in the conduct of official duties, or (ii) when fishing or seining for minnows at such times and places as may be authorized.

.....

Sec. 74-110. Multi-Use Recreational Trails.

- (a) *Definitions.*
 - (1) Multi-use recreational trails are defined pursuant to section 114-1 of this Code and exclude a bicycle lane on right-of-way.
 - (2) Electric personal assistive mobility devices are defined as a self-balancing device with two non-tandem wheels, designed to transport not more than one person, and operated by an electric propulsion system. A Segway is an example device.
 - (3) Single user electric devices means a device with or without handlebars designed to be stood or sat upon by the operator, and powered by electric motor that is capable of propelling the device with or without human propulsion. A One Wheel is an example device.
- (b) *Permitted Uses.* Except as otherwise provided, the following recreation, transportation, fitness and other similar uses are permitted on multi-use recreational trails:
 - (1) persons walking, jogging or running;
 - (2) persons utilizing or operating a non-motorized device, such as a bicycle, ~~including electronic bicycles as defined in 114-677,~~ skateboard, inline skates, scooters, ~~segways or wheelchair,~~ or other similar activities;

- (3) persons utilizing or operating an electric-motorized device of one horsepower or less, such as bicycles as defined in 114-677, single user electric devices, electric personal assistive mobility devices, or other similar activities;
 - (34) persons with mobility impairments or disabilities using manually operated or power-driven wheelchairs and manually powered mobility aids for the purpose of locomotion;
 - (45) persons with mobility impairments or disabilities using another power-driven mobility device for the purpose of locomotion, as provided in 28 CFR 35; and
 - (56) official emergency vehicles and authorized maintenance vehicles as necessary to perform the duties of the operator.
- (c) *Uses Not Permitted.* Except as otherwise provided, the following uses are not permitted on multi-use recreational trails:
- (1) motorized vehicles, except where the trail utilizes an existing road, street or highway and except by authorized personnel for the purpose of maintenance;
 - (2) equestrian uses; and
 - (3) skateboards are not permitted on ~~the~~ portions of trails that utilize an existing road, street or highway, except at designated crossings as indicated by curb ramps.
- (d) *Hours of Permitted Use.* Multi-use recreational trails shall be open for use by the public for recreation and transportation at all times, except for the following:
- (1) hours of use of sections of trails may be limited by the parks and recreation director;
 - ~~and~~
 - (2) sections of trails may be closed temporarily ~~in emergency situations~~ by the parks and recreation director ~~for emergency situations;- and~~
 - (3) sections of trails may be closed temporarily by the parks and recreation director for capital improvement projects.
- (e) *Official Signs.* Every user of a recreational trail shall observe and obey any and all official signs posted along a recreational trail, including, but not limited to, speed limits, hours of use, stop signs, yield signs and trail closures.
- (f) *Reasonable Speed.* Each person using the trail shall travel at a speed that is reasonable and prudent under the conditions then existing and shall not travel in such a manner as to constitute a willful or wanton disregard for the safety of persons or property.

.....

Sec. 74-112. Sledding, ice skating, ~~and~~ cross-country skiing and snowshoeing at parks and golf courses.

- (a) The city council finds that:
- (1) sledding in city parks and in designated areas in municipal golf courses ("sledding"); and
 - (2) skating on designated ponds in city parks and on man-made, temporary ice surfaces created by or under the authority of the parks and recreation department ("temporary ice rinks") in municipal golf courses or city parks ("ice skating"); and
 - (3) cross-country skiing and snowshoeing in designated areas in municipal golf courses and in parks ("cross-country skiing and snowshoeing ")
- are valuable, family friendly activities and are favored by considerations of social policy.

- (b) The city council further finds that the parks and recreation department budget does not contain sufficient funds to provide for supervision or inspection or grooming of sledding hills in city parks and golf courses, ponds and temporary ice rinks in parks and municipal golf courses for ice skating, ~~and~~ cross-country skiing ~~and snowshoeing~~ trails in municipal golf courses and parks. As a result of the inability to supervise or groom the sledding hills, skating ponds, ~~and~~ temporary ice surfaces and cross-country skiing ~~and snowshoeing~~ trails, such surfaces are uneven and may contain bumps, dips, ramps, ice, or thinning ice, trees and other hard and fixed objects in close proximity to a sledding or ice skating or skiing area and other dangers associated with numerous people utilizing various devices to proceed rapidly down icy or snowy inclines and enjoying various forms of recreational skating activities, ~~and~~ cross-country skiing ~~and snowshoeing~~. As sledding, ice skating, ~~and~~ cross-country skiing ~~and snowshoeing~~ can be dangerous activities, the city council finds that persons desiring to sled in city parks or golf courses, ~~and~~ to skate on ponds in city parks or temporary ice rinks, ~~and~~ to cross-country ski ~~and snowshoe~~ in municipal golf courses and parks have the obligation to inspect the sledding, ice skating, and skiing area conditions prior to using such areas. In balancing the social policies favoring family friendly but potentially dangerous sledding, ice skating, ~~and~~ cross-country skiing ~~and snowshoeing~~ activities and the economic policies which prevent the city from supervising or inspecting or grooming such surfaces and areas, the city council finds that:
- (1) sledding is allowed in areas and during times designated by the parks and recreation director at municipal golf courses or parks designated by the director;
 - (2) ice skating is allowed at temporary ice rinks designated by the parks and recreation director at municipal golf courses and at ponds within parks designated by the director during times designated by the director; and
 - (3) cross-country skiing ~~and snowshoeing are~~ allowed at municipal golf courses designated by the park and recreation director, except on tees and greens, during the times designated by the director and at city parks.
- (c) Winter recreational activities, including skating, sledding, ice fishing, ~~snowshoeing~~ and skiing, are not permitted in or on the water or ice of Gray's Lake.

.....

Sec. 74-175. ~~Tennis courts~~ Outdoor sport Courts.

(a) — Fees for rental with reservations for ~~tennis, futsal or Mini-Pitch, pickleball and basketball~~ sport courts are ~~÷~~ \$105.00 per hour per court.

~~(a)~~(b) All reservations ~~are~~ subject to approval of recreation manager. No fee is required for first-come-first-served use for non-reserved courts.

.....

Sec. 74-177. ~~Bike and R~~related ~~E~~quipment ~~R~~ental.

~~Bike and Related Equipment Rental Fees.~~ Fees for use of bicycles and related equipment are as follows:

Item*	Fee Per Hour	Fee Per Half Day (6 hours)	Fee per Full Day (24 hours)	Fee Per Week (7 days)
Hybrid or Mountain Bike with Bike Helmet – ages 13 and over	\$10.00 <u>15.00</u>	\$20.00 <u>25.00</u>	\$30.00 <u>35.00</u>	\$80.00
Hybrid or Mountain Bike with Bike Helmet – ages 12 and younger	\$5.00 <u>10.00</u>	\$15.00 <u>20.00</u>	\$25.00 <u>30.00</u>	\$75.00
Road Bike with Helmet – ages 13 and over	\$10.00 <u>15.00</u>	\$20.00 <u>25.00</u>	\$40.00 <u>45.00</u>	\$110.00
Road Bike with Helmet – ages 12 and younger	\$5.00 <u>10.00</u>	\$15.00 <u>20.00</u>	\$35.00 <u>40.00</u>	\$105.00
Trailer bikes and carriers	\$6.00	\$20.00	\$30.00	N/A
<u>Tandem Bikes</u>	<u>\$25</u>	<u>\$35</u>	<u>\$45</u>	

—*15% discount on total fee for groups of 15 people or more.

.....

Sec. 74-180. Community recreation center building rentals.

(a) Community recreation center building admission fees shall be as follows:

Admission Fee	Ages 19 to 59	Ages Under 19 and Over 59
Daily entry fee per person	\$1.00	No charge
Monthly pass per person	\$12.00	No charge
Annual pass per person	\$100.00	No charge

(b) Community recreation center building rental fees shall be as follows:

Rental Fees	Per Hour During Regular Operating Hours (2 hour minimum)	Per Hour During Holidays and Non Operating Hours (2 hour minimum)
Rental by governmental, public school and recognized Neighborhood Associations	No charge	No charge
Rental for exclusive use and public admissions where no fee or admission is charged and nothing is sold:		
Small meeting room	\$20.00	\$35.00
Multipurpose room	\$35.00	\$60.00 <u>65.00</u>

Gymnasium	\$35.00	\$60.00 65.00
Upper floor in east and west wings of xxxxxxx Pioneer Columbus	\$35.00	\$60.00

Sec. 74-181. Golf courses.

(a) *Definitions.* The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

- (1) Weekdays are Monday through Friday and weekends/holidays after 12:00 p.m.
- (2) Weekends are Saturday, Sunday and holidays before 12:00 p.m.
- (3) Twilight is from 3:00 p.m. until sunset on Friday and 4:00 p.m. until sunset on Saturday and Sunday and as otherwise designated during non-peak periods by the parks and recreation director.

(b) *Green fees.* Greens fees for golf courses shall be as follows:

(1) *Daily:*

	9-Holes Weekday	18-Holes Weekday	9-Holes Weekday with Cart	18-Holes Weekday with Cart	9-Holes Weekend before Noon	18-Holes Weekend before Noon	9-Holes Weekend before Noon with Cart	18-Holes Weekend before Noon with Cart	9-Holes Weekend after Noon	18-Holes Weekend after Noon	9-Holes Weekend after Noon with Cart	18-Holes Weekend after Noon with Cart	Twilight	Twilight with Cart
A.H. Blank	\$18.00	24.00	31.00	40.00	20.00	33.00	33.00	49.00	18.00	24.00	31.00	40.00	18.00	31.00
Bright Grandview	\$14.00 \$16.00	19.00 21.00	26.00 28.00	34.00 36.00	18.00 20.00	24.00 26.00	30.00 32.00	39.00 41.00	14.00 16.00	19.00 21.00	26.00 28.00	34.00 36.00	14.00 16.00	26.00 28.00
Waveland	\$20.00	27.00	33.00	43.00	23.00	36.00	36.00	50.00	20.00	27.00	33.00	43.00	20.00	33.00

a. *Youth mentor rates.* No charge for youth (under 18) playing with a paying adult, Monday through Friday and after noon on Saturday and Sunday. Valid with non-discounted daily fee only; does not include season badge players.

(2) *Military.* Active military personnel with a valid ID fees for golf shall be as follows:

	9-Holes Weekday	18-Holes Weekday	9-Holes Weekday with Cart	18-Holes Weekday with Cart	9-Holes Weekend before Noon	18-Holes Weekend before Noon	9-Holes Weekend before Noon with Cart	18-Holes Weekend before Noon with Cart	9-Holes Weekend after Noon	18-Holes Weekend after Noon	9-Holes Weekend after Noon with Cart	18-Holes Weekend after Noon with Cart	Twilight	Twilight with Cart
A.H. Blank	\$13.75	18.25	26.75	34.25	15.25	25.00	28.25	41.00	13.75	18.25	31.00	34.25	13.75	26.75
Bright Grandview	\$10.75	14.50	22.75	29.50	13.75	18.25	25.75	33.25	10.75	14.50	24.25	29.50	10.75	22.75
Waveland	\$15.25	20.50	28.25	36.50	17.50	27.25	30.50	43.25	15.25	20.50	33.00	36.50	15.25	28.25

(3) *Senior.* For seniors (62 years and older), shall be as follows:

	9-Holes Weekday	18-Holes Weekday	9-Holes Weekday with Cart	18-Holes Weekday with Cart	9-Holes Weekend before Noon	18-Holes Weekend before Noon	9-Holes Weekend before Noon with Cart	18-Holes Weekend before Noon with Cart	9-Holes Weekend after Noon	18-Holes Weekend after Noon	9-Holes Weekend after Noon with Cart	18-Holes Weekend after Noon with Cart	Twilight	Twilight with Cart
A.H. Blank	\$15.00	20.00	28.00	36.00	20.00	33.00	33.00	49.00	15.00	20.00	28.00	36.00	18.00	31.00
Bright Grandview	\$14.00	19.00	26.00	34.00	18.00	24.00	30.00	39.00	14.00	19.00	26.00	34.00	14.00	26.00
Waveland	\$17.00	23.00	30.00	39.00	23.00	36.00	36.00	50.00	17.00	23.00	30.00	39.00	20.00	33.00

(c) *Season badges.* Fees for golf badges shall be as follows:

	5 Day Weekday Pass Mon. – Fri.	7 Day Golf Pass	7 Day Golf Pass With a Cart	5 Day Senior Weekday Pass Mon. – Fri.	7 Day Senior Golf Pass	5 Day Couple Pass	5 Day Senior Couple Pass	Jr. Badge (17 and Under)
All Courses Under City's Contractor's Management	\$900.00	\$1,300.00	\$2,275.00	\$670.00	\$950.00	\$1,175.00	\$825.00	\$275.00

- (1) 5-day badges are valid for play Monday through Friday and weekends and holidays after 12:00 p.m., except at Jester Park Golf Course where Fridays are considered a weekend.
- (2) 7-day badges are valid for play all days and open hours.

(d) *Golf carts.*

- (1) Fees for renting golf carts for use on the course rented from are as follows:

Course	9-Holes	18-Holes
A.H. Blank	\$13.00	\$16.00
Bright Grandview	\$12.00 13.00	\$15.00 16.00
Waveland	\$13.00	\$16.00

- (2) Private golf carts registered by an individual with a city of Des Moines municipal golf course before May 1, 1996 with the same registrant as the operator are permitted. Such registrations may not be transferred to another individual. No new private golf cart registrations are accepted after April 30, 1996. The fee for use of private golf carts shall be one of the following:
 - (i) Registration fee - \$200.00, plus a Daily Trail fee, per course, per cart - \$8.00; or
 - (ii) Season cart badge - \$600.00.

(e) Miniature golf course fees shall be as follows:

Child (ages 4 and under)	Free
Child (ages 5 through 12)	\$ 5.00
Adult (ages 13 and older)	\$ 8.00
Groups of 10 or more	\$ 5.00 each

(f) *High school team* golf course fees involving at least one Des Moines high school team shall be as follows:

- (1) Practices (Des Moines high schools only) (start time 2:30 - 4:00 p.m.) \$1.00/person.
- (2) Dual meets (start time 2:30 - 4:00 p.m.) \$1.00/person.
- (3) Tournament (more than two teams, start time 2:30 - 4:00 p.m.) \$10.00/person.
- (4) Tournament (more than two teams, start time before 2:30 p.m.) \$70.00/team.

- (5) Schedules must be submitted to golf course management by August 1 each year.
- (6) Events scheduled are subject to change of date/time at the discretion of golf course management up to one week prior to the event.
- (7) Free golf cart use may be offered to officials/coaches at the discretion of golf course management.

Sec. 74-182. Park shelters and other park rentals.

Fees for ~~P~~park shelters and other park rentals shall be as follows:

- (1) *Sylvan Theater*
 - a. Fee Based Event - \$750.00 for half-day (6:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. or 2:00 – 9:00 p.m.)
 - b. Events free to the public and exclusive use events (i.e. weddings) - \$350.00 first two (2) hours (minimum) - \$150.00 each additional hour
- (2) *Garden reservation fees.* Must specify garden area:
 - a. Clare and Miles Mills Rose Garden at Greenwood Park: \$350.00 first two (2) hours (minimum), - \$150.00 each additional hour
 - b. Floral Garden at Union Park: \$15.00 per hour
 - c. Lilac Arboretum at Ewing Park: \$50.00 per hour
- (3) *Shelters.* Unless otherwise specified, each rental session is for the hours of 10:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. No rentals on New Year’s Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day and New Year's Eve.
 - a. *Enclosed Shelters:*

Enclosed Shelter	Monday through Thursday	Friday through Sunday
Birdland Park - Ding Darling Shelter	\$210.00	\$315.00
Columbus Park Shelter	\$190.00	\$250.00
Drake Park Shelter	\$190.00	\$210.00
Grandview Park - Bob Mahaffey Shelter	\$190.00	\$210.00
Greenwood Park - Jay Spence Shelter	\$190.00	\$210.00
Hub Spot Shelter	\$210.00	\$315.00
MacRae Park - W.C. Walker Shelter	\$190.00	\$210.00
Martin Luther King Jr. Park Shelter	\$65.00 per hour for minimum of two (2) hours, \$40.00 per hour for each additional hour between the hours of 10:00 a.m. to 9:30 p.m.	
Pioneer Park Shelter	\$85.00	\$105.00
Union Park – Bill and Nellie Ritchie Shelter (East)	\$85.00	\$105.00
Union Park – Margaret Swanson Shelter (West)	\$85.00	\$105.00

- b. *Open air shelters.*

Capacity	10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.	4:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m.	10:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m. (all-day rental)
Capacity of 100 or less	N/A	N/A	\$50.00
Capacity of more than 100	\$75.00	\$75.00	\$140.00

- (4) *Stewart Square Park and Stage*. Each rental session is for an 11-hour block (reserved for only one group per day): \$50.00
- (5) *Gray's Lake Park*.
- a. Christine Hensley Terrace Rental - \$200.00 per 3-hour block, \$67.00 per hour for each additional hour
 - b. Designated open space rental - \$250.00 per half day (six hours)
 - c. Canoe/hydro bike/paddle boat/stand up paddle board rental - \$8.00 per half hour and \$15.00 per hour
 - d. Sailboat rental - \$25.00 per hour, 2-hour minimum
 - e. Gray's Lake Railroad Corridor - \$500.00 per day per area as defined by Parks and Recreation Department (during park hours only)
- (6) Trail Event Use Fees. – \$1.00 per participant.
- (7) *Cabins*. Overnight at Ewing Scout Camp - \$40.00 per night
- (8) *Community garden plot*: ~~\$35~~25 per plot per year.
- (9) *Miscellaneous*:
- a. Equipment rental:
 1. Snowshoes - \$5.00 per day or \$10.00 for weekend (Friday noon until noon on Monday)
 2. Late fee for each day late - \$5.00
 - b. Additional trash cans - \$15.00 each up to 10 total
 - c. Cleaning fee - \$40.00 per hour, with a 2-hour minimum
 - d. Cancellation/transfer/administrative fee - \$10.00 for activities and rentals up to \$100.00, \$30.00 for activities and rentals over \$100.00
- (10) *Wading pool rental*: \$35.00 per hour (minimum two hours), available weekends only
- (11) *Open space permit*: \$10.00 per hour per field.
- a. Parks and recreation director has no authority to waive this fee.
- (12) *Disc golf tournament*: \$100.00 per day per location for recreational tournaments.

Sec. 74-183. Aquatic centers, swimming pools and marina.

(a) Fees for use of city aquatic centers, swimming pools and the marina shall be as follows:

- (1) *Northwest, Nahas and Teachout Aquatic Centers and Ashworth and Birdland Pools admissions**:
 - a. Children (under 3 years of age) - Free
 - b. Youth (3 through ~~20~~18 years of age) - \$3.00
 - c. Adults (~~21~~19 through 59 years of age) - \$5.00
 - d. Seniors (60 years of age and over) - \$3.00

*Half price admission after 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday

(2) *Season swim passes at aquatic centers and swimming pools:*

Pass Type* (valid at all locations)	Early Bird Rate	Standard Rate
Single	\$40.00	\$45.00
1st and 2nd family members or shared residence	\$75.00	\$80.00
3rd and 4th family member	Additional \$25.00 each	Additional \$30.00 each
Additional family members beyond 4th	Additional \$10.00 each	Additional \$10.00 each
Replacement tags	\$7.00	\$7.00
Youth agency:		
1 day a week child	N/A	\$25.00
2 day a week child	N/A	\$35.00
3 day a week child	N/A	\$45.00
4 day a week child	N/A	\$55.00
5 day a week child	N/A	\$65.00
Replacement tags	N/A	\$7.00

* A season pass to the Heritage Carousel of Des Moines at Union Park may be added to the purchase of any season swim pass for \$25.00. All members included on the season swim pass will be included on the carousel pass. The carousel pass is valid for unlimited rides during the same season as the season swim pass. A new carousel pass must be purchased each season.

- (3) *Pool rental for exclusive use.* \$175.00/hour for a minimum of two (2) hours. This fee includes \$150.00 per hour for pool use plus \$25.00 per hour for a minimum of two lifeguards. All rentals shall be outside of regular business hours unless approved by the parks and recreation director.
 - (4) *Pool rental for athletic programs and practices.* \$75.00/hour for a minimum of two (2) hours. This fee includes \$50.00 per hour for pool use plus \$25.00 per hour for a minimum of two lifeguards.
 - (5) *Swim meets.* \$500.00/day, maximum of 12 hours. This fee includes exclusive use for a single facility; the City will provide lifeguards.
- (b) *Birdland Marina moorage fees.* Moorage allowed annually from March 15 through November 15. All rentals are based on availability and are as follows:
- (1) *Seasonal Double access* - \$630.00
 - (2) *Seasonal Single access* - \$550.00
 - (3) *Replacement moorage decal* - \$5.00

Sec. 74-184. Brenton Skating Plaza.

- (a) Fees for use of the Brenton Skating Plaza ice rink during the skating season, as determined by the Parks and Recreation Department based on seasonal conditions, shall be as follows:
 - (1) Admission and skate rental fees:

Fee*	Fall 2022	Rate Fall 2023 and Beyond
Adult Admission(ages 13-59)	\$9.50	\$10.00

Child (6-12)/Senior (60+) <i>Admission</i>	\$5.75	\$6.00
Children Under 5 <u>years of age</u> <i>Admission</i>	Free	Free
Skate Rental	\$4.50	\$5.25 <u>5.00</u>
Punch Pass – 10 Admissions including Skate Rentals, all ages	\$85.00	\$85.00

(2) *Ice rink rental*: Fee for exclusive use of the Brenton Skating Plaza - \$250 per hour, minimum of two (2) hours.

(b) Fees for use of the Brenton Skating Plaza during the non-skating season, as determined by the Parks and Recreation Department based on seasonal conditions, are as follows:

(1) Monday through Friday rental: \$65.00 per hour, minimum of two (2) hours.

(2) Saturday and Sunday rental: \$90.00 per hour, minimum of two (2) hours.

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and publication as provided by law.

FORM APPROVED:

/s/ Glenna K. Frank

Glenna K. Frank

Assistant City Attorney